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1. The Appeals Chamber of the Internationsl Criminal Tribunal for the Prosecution of Persons

Responsible for Genocide and Other Serious Violations of International Humanitarian Law
Committed in the Territory of Rwanda and Rwandan Citizens Responsible for Genocide and Qther
Such Violations Committed in the Territory of Neighbouring States, Between 1 January 1994 and
31 December 1994 (“Appeals Chamber” and “Tribunal”, respectively) is seized of: e

- “Appellant Hassan Ngeze’s Motion to Order The Prosecutor to Disclose Material and/or
Statement/s of Witness EB ‘Which Might Have Come in his Possession Subsequent to the
Presentation of Forensic Expert’s Report on Witness EB’s Recanted Statement [sic]”, filed
confidentially by Hassan Ngeze (“Appellant”) on 19 June 2006 (“Motion of 19 June 2006"),
m which the Appellant requests the Appeals Chamber to order the Prosecutor to, disclose
material connected with the investigations conducted by the Specml Counsel to the
Prosecutor in relation with the alleged perjury committed by Witness EB:!

- “Appellant Hassan Ngeze's Urgent Motion for Leave to Present Additional Evidence
(Rule 115) of Witness ABC1 as per Prosecutor’s Disclosure of Transcript of Defence
Witness ABC1’s Testimony in The Prosecutor v. Bagosora et al, Filed on 22™ June 2006
Pursuant to Rule 75(F)(ii) and Rule 68 of the Rules of Procedure and Evidence”, filed
confidentially by the Appellant on 4 July 2006 (“Motion of 4 July 2006™), in which he
requests the Appeals Chamber to admit into evidence the testimony of Defense Witness
ABC] given before the Tribunal on 13 June 2006 in The Prosecutor v. Bagosora et al.,' Case
No. IE’I‘R—98-41 -T (“Bagosora et al. case™) and 1o call [the witness] to testify in the present
case;

- “Appellant Hassan Ngeze's in Person Urgent Motion for Leave to Present Additional
Evidence (Rule 115) of Witness EB as per Prosecutor’s Disclosure Filed on 20™ June 2006
of the Relevant Pages of the Gacaca Records Book Given Before the Gacaca on
[REDACTED]” filed confidentially by the Appellant on 14 July 2006 (“Motion of 14 July
2006™),% in which he secks admission into evidence of the testimony of Witness EB given
before the Gacaca on [REDACTED];

! See also Prosecutor’s Response to “Appellant Hassan Ngeze’s Motion to Order The Prosecutor ta Disclose Material
and/or Statement/s of Witness EB Which Might Have Come in his Possession Subsequent to the Presentation. of
Forensic Expert’s Report on Wimess EB’s Recanted Statement”, 26 Jfune 2006 (“Response to the Mation of 19 June
2006") and Appellant Hassan Ngeze's Reply to the Prosecutor's Response to “Appellant Hassan Ngeze’s Motion to
Order The Prosecutor to Disclose Material and/or Statements of Witness EB Which Might Have Come ‘in his
Possession Subsequent to the Presentation of Forensic Experr’s Report on Witness EB’s Recanted Statement”, 30 June
2006 (“Reply to the Response to the Motion of 19 June 2006™).

? See also Prosecutor's Response to “Appellant Hassan Ngeze's Urgent Mation for Leave to Prescnt Additional
Evidence (Rule 115) of Witness ABC1 as per Prosecutor’s Disclosure of Transcript of Defence Wimess ABCI’s
Testimony in The Prosecutor v. Bagosora et al. Filed on 22% June 2006 Pursuant to Rule 75(F)(ii) and Rule 68 of the
Rules of Procedure and Evidence”, filed confidentially on 13 July 2006 (“Response to the Motion of 4 July 2006") and
Reply to the Prosecutor's Response 1o “the Appellant Hassan Ngeze’s Urgent Motion for Leave to Present Additiopal
Evidence (Rule I15) of Witmess ABC1 as per Prosecutor’s Disclosure of Transcript of Defence Witness ABCI's
Testithony in The Prosecutor v. Bagosora et al. Filed on 22™ June 2006 Pursuant to Rule 75(F)(ii) and Ryle 68 of the
Rules of Procedure and Evidence"”, filed confidentially on 20 July 2006 (“Reply to the Response Lo the Motion of & July
2006™). The Appeals Chamber notes that the Response to the Motion of 4 July 2006 was served on the Appellant’s
Counsel by hand-delivery on 17 July 2006. Therefore, the Appeals Chamber considers the Reply to the Response to the
Motion of 4 July 2006 to be filed timely.

? This Motion had {nitially been filed by the Appellant in person on 3 July 2006 bnt was retumed to him as deficientdy
filed in light of the Order Conceming Filings by Hassan Ngeze dated 24 May 2004 and Order to the Registrar dated 26
November 2004. On 14 July 2006, the said Motion was forwarded to the Appeals Chamber by the Appellant’s.Counsel.
Oun 21 September 2006, following the Appeals Chamber’s Decision on Hassan Ngeze’s Motions Concerning Restrictive
Measures of Detention ol 20 September 2006, the Appellant’s Counsel requested the Registrar (with copy" ‘to the
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- “Appellant Hassan Ngeze's Urgent Motion for Leave to Present Further Additional
Evidence (Rule 115) of Witness EB”, filed confidentially by the Appeilant on 28 August

2006 (“Motion of 28 August 2006™), in which he requests the Appeals Chamber to admit

mfo evidence the addifional exculgatory staternent of witmess EB [...] aiiiiming his
recanted statement of 5™ April 20057;

- “Prosecutor’s Motion Pursuant to Rule 115 to Admit the Envelopes in Which Copies of
the Letter Purporting to Be a Statement From Wimess EB Were Received”, filed
confidentially by the Prosecutor on 7 September 2006 (“Motion of 7 September ‘2006”) in
which the Prosecution seeks admission of the envelopes in which copies of the alleged
recantation statement of Witness EB were received by the Office of the Prosecutor as

additional-evidence: ;

L. PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

2 Trial Chamber I of the Tribunal (“Trial Chamber™) rendered its Judgement in this case 0113;
December 2003.° The Appel]ant filed his Notice of Appeal on 9 February 2004,° amended on 9
May 2005,” and the Appellant’s Brief on 2 May 2005.® The Prosecution filed its Respondent’s Bnef

on 22 November 2005.° The Appellant replied on 15 December 2005.*°

: By its Decision of 23 February 2006, 1 the Appeals Chamber admitted as additional
evidence on appeal handwritten and typed copies of Witness EB’s purported recantation statcmcm
dated April 2005 (“Recantatmn Statement™)'? and the Forensic Report of Mr. Autipas Nyanjwa, an

Presiding Judge in the present case) to “treat all filings of Hassan Ngeze's Motion in person and forwarded by
[Counsel] as having been withdrawn”. On 25 September 2006, the Registrar requested the Appellant’s Counsel to
address to the Registrar and the Appeals Chamber a precige lst of motions that he wishes to withdraw, Up to date,.no
communication in this regard has been received fromn the Appellant’s Counsel. In these circumstances and in light of the
Pmct:lce DlIBCtan on thdrawal of Pleadmgs the Appeals Cimmber c:msldcrs the Motl.on of 14 Iuly 2006 Mthdmm

Wﬂhdraw Appeal Rtgarde fhc I'le::dmg of Joint Criminal Entcrpma in a Cmmt of Cnmplunty in Geuoczde,'zs
August 2006, para. 4, and Prosecuror v. Aloys Simba, Case No. ICTR-01-76-A, Notice on Prosceutor’s Motion
Withdrawing Motion Regarding Confidential Filings, 17 May 2006, p. 2).
* See Prosecutor’s Response to “Appellant Hassan Ngeze's Urgent Motion for Leave to Present Further Additional
Evidence (Rule 115) of Witness EB", filed confidentially on 7 September 2006 (“Response to the Motion of 28 August
2006”) The Appellant has not filed a reply to the Response to the Motion of 28 August 2006.

> The Prosecutor v. Ferdinand Nahimana er al., Case No. ICTR-99-52-T, Judgement and Sentence, 3 Decemb'ef 2003
(“Trial Judgement™). R
e , Defence Nou-:.c of Appeal (Pu.rsua.u: to 108 of the Rules of Procedure and Evidence), 9 February 2004.

Plls TaTol 4

e

’ Cm;ﬁa’emmz Appcllant s Brief (Pmsuam to Rule 111 of the Rules of Procedure and Evidence), 2 May 2005.
® Consolidated Respondent's Brief, 22 Navember 2005.
‘* Appellant Hassan Ngeze's Reply Brief (Article 113 of the Rules of Procedures and Evidence), 15 December 2005.
! Confidential Decision on Appellant Ngeze’s Six Motions for Admission of Additional Evidence on Appeal andfur
Funﬂwr Investigation at the Appeal Stage, 23 February 2006 (“Ngeze Decision on Additional Evidence™).

12 Ngeze Decision on Additional Evidence, para. 29; Confidential Decision on the Prosecutor’s Motion for an Drder and
Directives in Relation to Evidentiary Hearing on Appeal Pursuant to Rule 115, 14 June 2006 (“Decision of 14 June
2006™), p. 3.

L chnrt of the Forenstc Document Examiner Inspector Antipas Nyanjwa, dated 20 June 2005, Annex 4 to l.hc
DIECUIOT 5 dditions s} 4 R ESDD =10 ATTOENA! TASS A NEEZE 5§ UTEED viotionm fo SAVE O PFTeEe
Addlnonal Evidence (Rule 113) uf Wimess EB™™", filed conﬁdennally on 7 July 2005 (“Foreasic Repart™), See Ngeze

Decisian on Additional Evidence, para. 41,
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115 of the Rules of Procedure and Evidence of the Tribunal (“Rules”), and ordered that Witness EB

be heard by the Appeals Chamber, pursuant to Rules 98 and 107 of the Rules."*

4. On 14 June 2006, the Appeals Chamber dismissed the Prosecution’s request for an order to
the Appellant to produce the original handwritten and typed versions of Witness EB’s purported
Recantation Statement, and ordered Witness EB to appear, as a witness of the Appeals Chamber, at
an evidentiary hearing, pursuant to Rule 115 of the Rales.'”® By the same decision, the Appeals
Chamber modified the protective measures applicable to Witness EB and prohibited thc:_':j:iéxﬁc's,
their agents or any person acting on their behalf from contacting Witness EB, unless ‘expressly
authorized by the Appeals Chamber.'® -

5. On 20 June 2006, the Prosecution disclosed extracts from the [REDACTED] Gacacg Recoi‘d

Book, dated [REDACTED], which it asserts to be relevant to Witness EB’s tcstimony,rf The
Appeals Chamber recalls that this material cannot currently be considered as tendered into evidence
and will therefore not address its contents af the present stage. '® On 22 June 2006, pursuant to Rules
75 (F)(ii) and 68 of the Rules, the Prosecution disclosed the transcript of Witness ABCl's
testimony in the Bagosora et al. case dated 13 June 2006.'°

6. On 3 August 2006, the Prosecution informed the Appellant and the Appeals Chamber, that it
received, on 6 July 2006, a copy of the statement purportedly written by Witness EB dated-:':ls. or:16
December [year illegible] “affirming his earlier recanted statement” (“Additional Statement™).*
The copy of the said document (in Kinyarwanda with a translation into French) was transmitted by
the Prosecution to the Appellant on 17 August 2006.>' The English translation was transmitted to
the Appellant on 22 August 2006.%

7 On 13 September 2006, the Appellant requested the Prosecution to transmit to him the
transcript of Witness WFP10 [DW20] testimony in The Prosecutor v, Casimir Bizimungu et al.,

Case No. ICTR-99-50-T (“Bizimungu et al, case™) dated 1 through 4 September 2006, partly given
in closed session, which, in the Appellant’s belief, “contains exculpatory evidence and is relevant to

[T I
[ Bl
- .

"4 Ngeze Decision on Additional Evidence, para. §1. ) R
'$ Decision of 14 June 2006, p. 5. :

'S Ibid., p. 6.

'7 [REDACTED)].

18 See supra, at foomote 3.

' Disclosure of Transeript of Defence Wimess ABC1’s Testimony in the Prosecuior v. Bagosora et al. Pyrsuant 10
Rule 75(F)(ii) and Rule 68 of the Rules of Procedure and Evidence, filed confidentially on 22 June 2006 (“Disclosure of
22 June 2006”). . 5

% Request for a Further Extension of the Urgenr Resu-:'cn‘vuJMeasure.s- in the Case Prosecutor v. Hassan Ngeze,
pursuant to Rule 64 [of the] Rules Covering the Detention of Persons Awaiting Trial or Appeal Before the Tribunal or
(?therwise Detained on the Authority of the Tribunal, filed confidentially on 3 August 2006, .

2 1d. '

2 Follow up 1o Prosecutor’s Response to [...] Correspondence Dated 15 August 2006 Regarding “Request for Supply
of Copy of the Statement of Witness EB Dated 15" December 2005™, filed confidentially on 22 August 2006.

Case No. ICTR-99-52-A 4 27 November 2006 ‘—\(_,(,,1
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the evidentiary hearing of the witness EB before the Appeals Chamber”.” Ou 4 Octobcrsz%%g,fge
Prosecution responded that it was not in a position to accommodate this request because it is too
general.”* The Prosecution also affirmed that, upon review of both the closed and open session
transcripts of Witness WFP10’s testimony in the Bizimungu et al. case, it “has not found any
exculpatory material within the meaning of Rule 68(A) of the Rules”, specifying that the only

mention of Witness EB was made in open session and is thus available to the Appellant 3 )

II. MOTION OF 19 JUNE 2006

8. The Appellant requests the Appeals Chamber to order the Prosecution to disclose insterial
related to investigations into the alleged perjury committed by Witness EB which may have come
into its possession after the filing of the Forensic Report.”® The Appellant submits tbat such material

is necessary for the preparation of his defence and cross-examination of Witness EB duﬁ.qg the
evidentiary hearing.?’ He suggests that the Appeals Chamber can order the production of additional
evidence from either party under Rule 98 of the Rules.”®

9. The Prosecution responds that the Motion of 19 June 2006 should be dismissed. Fi}st, the
Prosecution contends that it is well aware of its ongoing obligations under Rule 68 of the Rules and
has acted in full compliance with them, notably by making its Disclosures of 20 and 22 June 2006,
and will continue 1o do s0.° Second, it maintains that since the Motion of 19 June 2006 does not
refer to any specific document, it amounts to a “fishing expedition™.*® Third, the Prasecution
submits that any material uncovered by the Special Counsel during her investigation is privileged
and protected by the provisions of Rule 70 (A) of the Rules and thus, will not be disclosed, except if
it falls within the scope of Rule 68.*' i

10. The Appellant replies that he is not asking for any material relating to the Special Counsel’s
report, but for “the material or statement related to the witness EB only” 32 and notes that “it is not

clear from the Prosecutor’s response as to whether the Prosecutor has got any further staternent

3 Request for the Supply of the Court Testimony of Witness Testifying under the Pseudo Name WFP10 [DW20] in
Govornment 1 Case No. ICTR-99-50-T, Bizimungu et al. Given durmg 1% September to 4™ September, 2006, as
provided under Rule 68 (A) and (E) of the Rules of Proccdure and Evidence, filed confidentially on 13 September 2006.

Response to [...] “Request for the Supply of the Court Testimony of Witness Testifying under the Psenda Name
WFP10 [DW20] in Government 1 Case No. ICTR-99-50-T, Bizimuvgu et al. Given during 1™ September to 4

September 2006, as provided under Rule 68 (A) and (E) of the Rules of Procedure and Evidence”, 4 October 2006,
ara. 2. '

Ibid., para. 4.
% Motion of 19 June 2006, paras 1, 3.
¥ Ibid., para. 4.
2 Ibid., para. 6.
» Respanse to the Motion of 19 June 2006, para. 3.
* 1bid., paras 2, 4.
*! Ibid., para. 6. .
32 Reply to the Response to the Motion of 19 June 2006, paras 1-2.

Case No, ICTR-99-52-A 5 27 November 2006 U
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from the witness EB or not”,~ He s thyat i {ga whowere act with Wittess EB
after the filing of the Forensic Report and before the Appeals Chamber’s prohibition of ‘cdntact,
ight have received further material from Witness EB. * Finally, he affirms that, aiven the

ie] required 43

rwfﬂﬂmr:-l- ad ™

under Rule 68 of the Rules o, ~as soon as practicable, disclose 1o the Defence any material which

cused or

- fbxd para. 5.

4 Thid. ~para 3
2 ""'a‘ pa’a

Decision on J.ntmocutory Appr.al chammg the R.ole of Ehe Pmsecv.itor's Elecn-omc “Disclosure Suits i thchargmg

Disclosure Obligatious, :0 Iune "006 ijwemera 30 Junc 2006 Dacmon ), para. 9; Prasecumr)g, Théoneste Bagg ra |
21 (1 ase o (. 1] L) ] - o Ltz BLE 3 ]

Appcals Chamber rn:gﬂ.rdmg Reaacnon of me Sﬁtemcn: oT*'W*m—ErW—fo—ﬂr Purposes of D;sulusu:e (@) Piﬁm
Llub:Eié under Rule 68, 30 March 2004 {“B!aﬂn'd 30 March 2004 Dec:smn") para. 32 Prasecu.rar v. T:ham:r Biashc,

App—nint [ PiTs i an C : : & yotd
Mnterlals 7 DGCLmbar 2004 (“Brdamn T December 2004 DGC‘J.SlOB s p 3 Prau.ecumr v, T:homur Bia.fhc Casc"\lu II'-

para. 263; Pra.securor v. Enver Ha:i'?lha.:amvic el a!. Case No I 01-47-&&?.5 umsmn on Appeal from Rei'ﬁsal tﬁ
Grant Access 1o g:;m fdentlal Mgtennl in Another Case, 23 Apnl 2002 ("Hadﬂhasanowé 23 Amﬂ 2002 Declsmn”], .

er i, 99-50-1 o o frane v
bvtdencc Rciatnd to W'mess GKI { ICE 17# Saptcmber <004, paras 8—12
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documents should be disclosed”.*® Finally, if an accused wishes 10 show that the Prosecution is in

breach of these obligations, he/she must identify the material sought, present a prima facie Shomng
as to its probable exculpatory nature, and prove the Prosecution's custody or control thereof. 4"Evén
when the Defence satisfies the Chamber thai|1.he Prosecution has failed to comply with its Fule 68
obligations, the Chamber will examine whe’r.hcr the Defcncc has actually been prejudiced by such
failure before considering whether a remedy i 1Is a.ppropnatc.

12. Under Rule 70(A) of the Rules, “repdrts, memoranda, or other intemal documents prcpared
by a party, its assistants or representatives in! nnection with the investigation or preparation of the
case, are not subject to disclosure or notification” under Rules 66 and 67. Pursuant to Rule 70(B),
with respect to information provided to the Plrosecution on a confidential basis and used * salcly for
the purpose of generating new evidence”, the Prosecution shall not disclose it to the Defencé unIeas
it obtains the consent of the person or entity providing such information and, in any event, ce_mnot

tender it into evidence without prior disclosure to the Defence.

13,  The Appeals Chamber recalls that on 7 July 2005, the Prosccution confidentially filed thr:
“Prosecutor’s Additional Submissions in R;:Sponse to “Appellant Hassan Ngeze’s Urgent Motion
for Leave to Present Additional Evidence (Rule 115) of Witness EB™, in which it disclosed certain
results of the investigations with respect to Witness BB.*> These submissions were taken into
account by the Appeals Chamber when aifiscssing the prima facie credibility of Witness EB’3
additional evidence.* On 7 April 2006, the Prosecution specified that, although it was not in the
position to provide a date for conclusion of the investigations, it was taking the necessary m:b.gs}xr‘éé
in order to ensure the communication of the results as soon as possible.** The Appeals Chamber
notes that the Prosecution continually refers to issues related to Wimess EB in its sub_:rﬁé.giops
conceming the restrictive measures applic{ablc to the Appellant, notably “in the come:& of tiu:
ongoing investigations, led by the Special? Counsel to the Prosecutor”.*® It notes, inter alid, that
such measures are still necessary, “including in light of the recent letter, purportedly written by
witness EB, with multiple copies mailed, flr-om both Rwanda and Tanzania, to three Prosecution’s

i
1
I
]

*® Bralo 30 August 2006 Decision, para. 30; Biaskzc 26 September 2000 Decision, para. 40; Bla¥kié 29 October 1997
Dccxsmn, para. 32.

0 Bralo 30 August 2006 Decision, para. 30; Bias‘k:é 26 September 2000 Decisicn, para, 440.
*! Bralo 30 August 2006 Decision, para. 31; Kajelijeli Appeal Judgement, para. 262; Brdanin 7 Decerber 2004
Decision, p. 3.
“* Bralo 30 August 2006 Decision, para. 31; Kajelijeli Appeal Judgement, para. 262; Krstié Appeal Judgement, para.
153; see also Prosecutor v. Edouard Karemera et al., Case No. 1CTR-9344=T Oral Decision on Stay of P:occcdmgs,
16 February 2006, pp 4 and 8-9 i
“ [REDACTED]. !
* Ngeze Decision on Additional Evidence, para. 20
3 Status Conference, T. 7 April 2006, pp 19-20.
1 IREDACTED].

Case Na. ICTR-99-52-A 7 27 November 2006 ':'\'\7,
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Statement “can only b ed 4 etV at th re measures are appropriate
—and should even be swengthened, particularly in light of the upcoming—Rui-e—H%cvidenﬁa:y
hea;mgiﬁkuManﬂmmhxm_dﬂﬁLlLSﬂpﬂ:mbﬂr 2006, the Prosecution reasserted that tne.re was z

o with Witness ER.*

\uvuul. A1

14. With respect to the Speci

stated that (1) the material produced in the course of these mvestfgﬁmrrs—hkﬂyw—faﬂW —

_ scopeof Rule 70(A) of the Rules, and (ji) no existing orders or decisions obliged the ¥rosecufion to

70(A).> In any event, peither Rule 70 nor the Decision on Special Counsel should inany'waybe |
interpreted as lessening the scope of the Prosecution’s Rule 68 obligations described above.

and 22 June 2006 were not made in response fo the Mofion of 19 June 2006, but rather as part of ifs

Lx.uuau TEDT.
[REDA(. TEDL.

mmmmmm_djmm 2006, tha Pmsecutmn mnkea a :equest for strzngt_h ggg [

lnuuumg mﬂb I uLJJ

““ Der.mon rafarrve ala Requérz de I Appe!am Ha.rsan Ngsze cancernan.l Ja cummumcarmn du rqpporr de !A\-ar;m

Judgement” z paras 30-36 The Appea Chamber spacmed the Iulluwmg -
“34. mghg_mucwmm wlmess Slﬂtﬁm’-‘m have 10 bt dlitmgulsheﬂ from

Rules, If, hnwe\rer. cou.nsel or anorhar swtf member of the mecunon note_dﬁ_wn 4 question prior o the mmuqn,

witho Mg this ggesnun to the vntness suc.h a ques'aon is not sulucct to disclosure. Bmﬂaﬂy. any note made by

35.{.;.] The Prosecw : _ - : ;
been recorded. However, smih:ng wmc.h is not in the possassion of or accessible 1o the Prosccution cannof be sﬁb“ ect
to dlsclosme nemo (gretur ad WMFSIBIIE (no one is bound 10 an gpossiblhty} [t'ootnotes ammed]

je Blag ; ase ecision on Vldme Bla_glavh'.: s

d:sclosum as 1t 15 in the public tntcrcst tlmr into:manon relzied 1D the : AHOT TP :
tht:oneg, strategies and investigations, shall be privileged and not subject to dxsc]om to the oppnung pa:ty‘ -

2 See supra, nt.para_11. See alsa Niyitegeka Appeals Judgement, para. 30 and footmote 2. i
53 Re i 20046 Ta. 3
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obligations to disclose cxculpatory or other relevant material** Finally, the Prosecution has

specified that it did not provide copies of the Additional Statement to the Appellant prior to his
request of 15 August 2006, since the document was at the same time addressed to the Appel]a;it and
his Counsel” In these circumstances, although the Appeals Chamber accepts the Appellant’s

argument that in the present circumstances he cannot identify with more precision the nature-of thie
material to which he secks access, it finds that the Appellant has provided no indication of any
failure of the Prosecution to comply with its disclosure obligation. Therefore, for lack of evidence -
to the contrary, the Appeals Chamber considers that the Prosecution is acting in good faith_sﬁ‘ In
light of the above, there is no need for the Appeals Chamber to order the Prosecution to €omply
with its Rule 68 obligations, since “[o]nly where t'.h;e Defence can satisfy a Chamber that the
Prosecution has failed to discharge its obligations shnf:mld an order of the type sought [...] to be

contemplated”.>’

16.  In addition, while the parties do not refer to Rule 66(B) of the Rules, the Appeals Chamber
potes that the Appellant’s request appears to fall under this provision since he is seeking access to
documents that would be material to the preparation of his defence with respect to thé cross-
examination of Witness EB at the evidentiary hearing or might be intended for use by the
Prosecution as evidence on that occasion. It has already been clarified that Rule 66(B) aﬁpﬁés té
appclla‘te proceedings and that, consequently, the Prosecutlon, on request of the Defence, “has to

permit the inspection of any material which is capahl!e of being admitted on appeal or which may
lead to the discovery of material which is capable of] being admitted on appeal™.*® In this respect,
the Appeals Chamber recalls that “purely inculpatory| material is not necessarily immaterial for the
preparation of the Defence” and that the Prosecution should instead consider “(a) whether the issues
to which the material relates are subject of a ground | of appeal” or “(b) whether the marenal could
reasonably lead to further investigation by the Defmcc and the discovery of additional cﬂdencc

admissible under Rule 115 of the Rules”.™ Themcforle, the Appeals Chamber proprio moty dgrccts

the Prosecution to apply the above-mentioned criteria in order to determine whether it is in
possession of any documents that are material to the lgarcpamtidn of the Defence, with the exception
of Rule 70 matenal as discussed above, and then ret!um, if necessary, to the Appeals Chamber for
permission to withhold any information provided by t[tacse sources under Rule 66(C) of the R_ulcs;. '

5 Disclosure of 20 June 2006, para. 4 (the Appeals Chamber notes that the Prasecution did not specify whether this
disclosure was made under Rulc 68 of the Rules); Disclosure of 22 Yunc 2006. para. 2 (it is mentioned in para, 1 that the
disclosure is made pursuant to Rules 68 and 75(F)(ii)).
js Motion of 7 Septmber 2006 para. 13,

December 2004 Decision, p. 3; Slaskic 26 Septambu' 2000 Declmon, para. 45
o Brala 30 August 2006 Decision, para. 31; Blaskic 26 Scptembar 2000 Decision, para. 45. '
¥ Prosecutor v. Radislav Krstié, Case No. IT-98-33-A, Confidensial Decision on the Prosceution’s Mntmn to Be

gchmd of Obligation to Disclose Sensitive Information Pursuant to Rule 66(C), 27 March 2003, p. 4.
Jd. o
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17.  Finally, the Appeals Chamber reiterates that, in’ compliance with its Decision of 14 June
2006, pot only the parties, but also their agents or any other persons on their behalf, are prohibited

]

from contacting or interfering with Witness EB.

III. ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE

A, Applicable Law

18.  The Appeals Chamber recalls that according to the jurisprudence of the Tribunal and that of
the International Criminal Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia (“ICTY™), an appeal pursuant to
Article 24 of the Statute of the Tribunal (Article 25 of the Statute of the ICTY) is not a trial de novo
and is not an opportunity to remedy any “failures or oversights” by a party during the pre-trial add
trial phases.®

19.  Rule 115 of the Rules provides for a corrective measure on appeal, and its purpose is ffd dc;l
“with the situation where a party is in possession of material that was not before the court of fn'st
instance and which is additional evidence of a fact or issue litigated at trial”."' According to this
provision, for additional evidence to be admissible on appeal, the following requirements must be
met. First, the motion to present additional evidence should be filed “not later than thirty days from
the date for filing of the brief in reply, unless good cause or, after the appeal hearing, cogent reéson_fi
are shown for further delay”.®® Second, the Appeals Chamber must find “that the additional
evidence was not available at trial and is relevant and credible,” When determining the avaﬂablhty
at trial, the Appeals Chamber is mindful of the following principles:

[TThe party in question must show that it sought 10 make “appropriate use of all mechanisms of
protection and compulsion available under the Statute and the Rules of the International Tribunal
to bring evidence [...] before the Trial Chamber.” In this connection, Counsel iz expected to.
apprise the Trial Chamber of all the difficulties he or she encounters in obtaining the evidence in
question, including any problems of mtimidation, and his or her inability to locate certain -
witesses, The obligation to apprise the Tral Chamber constitutes not only a first step m
exercising due diligence but also a means of self-ptowctmn m that pon-coopcration of the
prospective witness is recorded contemporaneously.®

% prosecutor v. Jean-Paul Akayesu, Case No. ICTR-96-4-A, Judgement, 1 June 2001, para. 177; Decision on Appéllant 3
Hassan Npeze's Motion for the Approval of the Investigation at the Appeal Stage, Case No. ICTR-99-52-A; 3 May
2005 (“Decision an Investigation™), p. 3; Decision on Jean-Bosco Barayagwiza’s Extremely Urgent Motion for Leave
to Appoint an Investigator, Case No. IC.'IR-SIB-SZ-A, 4 QOctober 2005 (“Barayagwiza Decision of 4 October 2005™), p.
3; Ngeze Decision on Additional Evidence, para. 5; Decision on Appellant Hassan Ngeze's Motion for Approva: of
Further Investigations on Specific Information Relating to the Additional Evidence of Potential Witnesses, Case No.
ICI'R 99-52-A, 20 June 2006 (“Ngeze Decision on Further Investigations™), para. 4, '
8 Prosecutor v. Zoran Kupreskié et al., Case No. IT-95-16-A, Decision on the Motions of Drago Josipovié, Zoran

Kupreskié¢ and Viatko Kupreskié to Admit Additional Evidence Pursuant to Rule 115 and for Judicial Notice to be
Taken Pursuant to Rule 94 (B), 8 May 2001 (“Kupreskié et al. Decision of § May 2001"), para. 3; Bamyagmza
Decision of 4 October 2005, p. 4; Ngeze Decision en Additional Evidence, para. 6.

%2 Rule 115 (A) of the Rulcs as amended on 10 November 2006,

8 prosecutor v. André Niagerura, et al., ICTR-99-46-A,, Decision on Prosscution Motion for Admission of Additional
Evidence, 10 December 2004 (“Nragarura er al. Decision of 10 December 2004™), para. 9. [Internal refercnces omitted).

Case No. ICTR-99-52-A 10 27 November 2006_' ' ﬁ’br
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With regards to relevance, the Appeals Chamber will consider whether the proposed evidence
sought to be admitted relates to a material issue. As to credibility, the Appeals Chamber wﬂl only
refuse to admit evidence at this stage if “it is devoid of any probative value in relation to a decision
pursuant to Rule 115", without prejudice 1o a determination of the weight to be afforded.®®

20. Once it has been determined that the additional evidence meets these conditions, the
Appeals Chamber will determine whether the evidence “could have been a decisive factor' in
reaching the decision at trial."® To satisfy this, the evidence must be such that it could have had an
impact on the verdict, ie. it could have shown that a conviction was unsafe.”’ Accordingly, the
additional evidence must be directed at a specific finding of fact related to a conviction or to the

sentence.

21.  Although Rule 115 of the Rules does not explicitly provide for this, the Appeals Chamber
has considered that, where the evidence is relevant and credible, but was available at trial, of could
have been discovered through the exercise of due diligence, the additional evidence may still be
admitted if the moving party establishes that the exclusion of the additional evidence wouid a.mount

to a miscarriage of justice inasmuch as, had it been adduced at trial, it would have had an nnpact on
the verdict.%* ;

22.  Finally, the Appeals Chamber recalls that, whether the evidence was available at trial or not,
the additional evidence must always be assessed in the context of the evidence presented at tnal,

and not in isolation.””

® Prosecutor v. Stanislav Galié, Case No, IT-98-29-A, Decision on the First and Third Rule 115 Motions to Present
Additional Evidence Before the Appeals Chamber, 30 June 2005 (“Galié 30 June 2005 Decision™), para. 95; Emmanuel
Ndindabahizi v. The Prosecutor, Case No. ICTR-01-71-4, Decision on the Admission of Additional Evidence, 14 Apﬁl
2005, p. 6; See also Prosecutor v, Mladen Naletilié & Vinko Martingvié, Case No. IT-98-34-A, Judgement, 3 May
2006, para. 402; The Prosecutor v. André Ntagerura et al., Case No. ICTR-99-46-A, Decision on Prosecution Mation
for Admission of Additional Evidence, 10 December 2004, para, 22; Georges 4nderson Nderubumwe Rutaganda V. The
Prosecumn Case No. ICTR-96-3-A, Judgement, 23 May 2003, para. 266.

“ Prosecutor v. Zoran Kupreskic et al., Case No. IT-95-16-A, Decition on Motions for the Admission of Addmonal
Evidence filed by the Appellants Vlatk.o Kupreski¢, Drago Josipovié, Zoran Kupretki€ and Miran Kupre¥kié,
26 February 2001, para. 28; KupreSki¢ Appeal Judgement, para. 63; Prosecutor v. Blafkié, Case No. FT-95-14-A,
Degcision on Evidence, 31 October 2003 (“Blaskic Decision of 31 Dcwbcr 2003"), p. 3; Neeze Decision on Addmunn.l
Evidence, para. 7; Ngeze Deeision on Further Investigations, para. 3.

5 * Rule 115 (B) of the Rules,

" Kuprekié Appeal Judgement, para. 68; Prosecutor v. Radislay Krstié, Case No. TT-98-33-A, Decision on Application

for Admission of Additional Evidence on Appeal, 5 August 2003 (“Krstié Decision of S August 20037), p. 3; Blaskic
Decision of 31 October 2003, p. 3; Ngeze Decision on Additional Evidence, para. 8; Meeze Decisién on Further
Investgations, para. 6.
® Kajelijeli v. Prosecutor, Case No. ICTR-92-44A-A, Decision on Defence Motion for the Admission of Additional
Evidcnce Pursuant to Rule 115 of the Rules of Pracedure and Evidence, 28 October 2004 (*Kajelijeli Decision of 28
October 2004™), para. 11; Ntagerura et gl. Decision of 10 December 2004, para 11; Ngeze Decision on Additional
Evidence, para, 9; Ngeze Dnclsmn on Further Investigations, para. 7.
% huvénal Kajelijeli Decision of 28 October 2004, para. 12; Ntagerury et al. Decision of 10 December 2004, para_ 12;
Ngeze Decision on Additional Bvidence, para, 10; Ngeze Dceision on Further Investigations, pars, See aksa Bladki¢
Deeision of 31 October 2003, p. 3; Momir Nikolié v. Prasecutor, Case No, IT-02-60/1-A, Decision on Motioi to Adumit
Additional Evidence, 9 Deccmber 2004, para- 25. -
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B. Motion of 4 July 2006

Submissions of the Parties

23.  In his Motion of 4 July 2006, the Appellant seeks the admission of evidence from Witness
ABC1 which, he contends, shows that (i) testimony provided by other Prosecution Witnesses was
false;'° and (ii) the Appellant was not a party to the killings which occurred on 7 April 1924, in
Gisenyi.”' The proffered evidence consists of transcripts of Witness ABC1’s testimony on 13 June
2006 in the Bagosora et al. case, including testimony given in closed session.”” The Appellant also
prays the Appeals Chamber to call the witness to testify in the present case.”

24,  The Appellant submits that this evidence became available to him only after the Disclosure
of 22 June 2006,” despite the exercise of due diligence.”® He submits that it is relevant to the issue
relating to his innocence,’® since it does not implicate him in the killings of 7 April 1994 in Gisenyi,
which is in “complete contradiction” with Witness EB’s testimony of 15-17 May 2001.” Jn
consequence, according to the Appellant, if accepted, this new evidence will “Belic the
prosecution’s story narrated by PWs [sic] AGX, Serushago, and AHI” and overturn the Trial
Chamber’s factual findings at paragraphs 812, 836 and 837 of the Trial Judgement,™ thus affecting
the verdict.”” Stressing that the finding of credibility of Witness EB was “based 1.11:»01;c faise
gvidence”, the Appellant avers that the non-admission of Witness ABC1’s testimony will result in'a
miscarriage of justice,* .o

25.  The Prosecution opposes the Motion of 4 July 2006 and submits that it does not meet the
threshold criteria for admission of additional evidence pursuant to Rule 115 of the Rules,*" First, the
Prosecution argues that the Appellant has not shown that the material was unavailable at trial. It
contends that Witness ABC1 and the Appellant knew each other and the Appellant thus could have
sought to contact [this person] as a potentially useful witness in support of his alibi defence.®
Second, the Prosecution maintains that the evidence is not relevant fo a maitenial issue, since
Witness ABC1 only testified [as to not having seen] the Appellant at [Barnabé Samvura’s] house on
the morning of 7 April 1994, and not about the Appellant’s activities outside that house on-that day,

7 Motion of 4 July 2006, para. 5a.

1 Ibid., paras 2, 4. [REDACTED]

™ Motion of 4 Tuly 2006, preliminary para. a.

B bid, preambulary para. c.

" Ibid., paias 1, 3.

 Ibid., para. 10.

had Ibid., paras 10-11.

77 Ibid., paras 2, 4, footnote 1, with reference to the Bagosora et al. case, T. 13 June 2006, pp 9-14, 16.
" Ibid., para. 5.

™ [bid., para. 10,

 [bid., para. 6.

#! Response to the Motion of 4 July 2006, paras 2-3.

et
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in and around Gisenyi.** The Prosecution adds that “whether or not a meeting actually took place is
not materially relevant 1o the facts underpinning the Appellant’s conviction”,® the material issue, as
presented by Witness EB, being the fact that the Appellant spoke through a loudspeaker, in the
street, inciting Interahamwe to kill Tutsis.*® Third, the Prosecution contests the credibility of
Witness ABC1 and subrmits that there is evidence in the Bagosora et al. case that contradicts [the]
testimony [provided by this witness].*® Finally, the Prosecution submits that, in any event, thé
Appeliant does not demonstrate that the evidence would or even could have affected the verdict at
trial. ¥’ It points out that the Appellant does not explain why the Trial Chamber would, _have
preferred Witness ABC1’s evidence to that of Witness EB®® or to that of other witnesses concerning
his participation in the genocide.®

26. In his Reply to the Response to the Motion of 4 July 2006, the Appellant underlines that the
Prosecution’s contention that the proffered evidence is irrelevant contradicts the fact that it was
disclosed 1o him under Rule 68 as exculpatory and relevant.”® He maintains that there is no reason
ic doubt Witness ABC1's credibility, who is an eyewitness and the “most natural v»;@méss to
describe the true facts which occurred on 7% April, 1994, at [Samvura's) house”®! He adds that any
reference to the evidence of Witness EB is not appropriate at this stage in light of the upcﬁming
evidentiary hearing,” Finally, the Appellant concludes that even if another eyewitness’ (Witness
EB) resti:-mnn}' gave a different version of the incidents of 7 April 1994, Witness ABC1’s evidénce
“i5 relevant as in that situation according to the principle of evidence neither of the version[s] could
be accepted as true”.®

Discussion

27.  As a preliminary matter, the Appeals Chamber considers that there is good cause for the late
filing of the Motion of 4 July 2006. Witness ABC1’s testimony in the Bagosora et al. cdse, dated
13 June 2006, was made, in the relevant parts, in closed session. The Prosecution dxsclosed the
corresponding transcript on 22 June 2006 and the Motion of 4 July 2006 was filed soon ther:aﬁer
The Appeals Chamber therefore recognizes the Motion of 4 July 2006 as timely.

LR T
5o ¥ -

v or em
W

Ib:d ., paras 4-6. %
8 [bid., paras 7-8. According to the Prosecution, the Appellant's interpretation of the scope of Wrtness ABCI 5
testimony is prossly exaggerated and can only stand for the proposition that she did not see the Appellant at

LSamera s] house thar moming, a fact that has no relevance to the Appellant’s conviction.
Respunsc to the Motion of 4 July 2006, para. 9.

' Ibid., para. 10.
b '- bid., paras 8 and 11. [REDACTED)]

%7 Response to the Motion of 4 July 2006, para, 12.
* (bid., pars. 13.

"%b:d paras 14-15.

R:ply to the Response to the Motion of 4 July 2006, paras 1 and 3.
! Ibid., paras 4-S.
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28.  However, with respect to the availability of the proffered evidence at trial, the.sfpng[:ag
Chaniber agrees with the Prosecution that the Appellant failed to exercise the due diligence required
for the evidence to be admissible on appeal. The Appeals Chamber recalls that “the mere fact that [a
witness] gave evidence in another case and that the Appellant was not aware that [the witness was]
in possession of this information until then does not in itself suffice to demonistrate mmvaﬂab;hty of
the evidence at trial.”™ The Appellant must demonstrate that the “proffered evidence was not
available to him at trial in any form” and that he had made use of 21l mechanisms of protcction and
compulsion available under the Statute and the Rules to bring the evidence before the -Trial
Chamber.” In the present case, the Appellant has not shown why he could not call [Witness ABC1]
[REDACTED] as a Defence witness at trial in order to refute the evidence provided by Witness EB
stating that, on the morning of 7 April 1994, he saw the Appellant go into the compound of
Samvura’s house together with many Interahamwe. Therefore, the Appeals Chamber is not satisfied
that this evidence was unavailable at trial.

29.  As to the relevance and credibility of the proffered evidence, the Appeals Chamber is
sansfied that the prima facie requirements have been met. The testimony of Witness ABé_:II. in' the
Bagosora et al. case is, on its face, in contradiction with the testimony on the same events given bi,r
some of the Prosecution witnesses in the present case, and that of Witness EB in particular’ The
evidence in question thus appears to have some relevance to the Trial Chamber’s findings on the
credibility of these witnesses as well as to its factual findings with respect to the Appellant’s
participation in the killings that took place in Gisenyi on the morning of 7 April 1994.% Without
prejudice to the Trial Chamber’s findings in the Bagosora ef al. case as to the credibility of Witness
ABCI1 and considering the fact that the testimony was given under solemn oath, the Appeals

Chamber is satisfied that the proffered evidence is prima facie reasonably capable of belief or
reliance.”

- Reply to the Responsc to the Motion of 4 July 2006, para. 6.

? Ibid., para. L
* Galié 30 Jmm 2005 Decision, para, 115; Krsti¢ Deelsion of § August 2003, p. 3; Prosecutor v, Radislay Krsr:c, Cue
No. IT-98-33-A, Decision on Application for Subpoenas, 1 July 2003, paras 4-5: “The defence often seeks to satisfy
this requirement by asserting that an attempt had been made before or during the wial to ascertain from such prospective
witnesses what evidence they could give, but that the prospective witnesses had either failed or declined to co-operate.
However, before additional evidence will be admitied pursuant to Rule 115, the defence is obliged to demonstrare not
only that the evidence was not available at trial but also that the evidence could not have been discovered through the
exercise of due diligenee [...]. This obligation of due diligence is therefore directly relevant to the procedures of the
Tribunal (in particular, Rule 54) both before and during trial, as well as on appeal.” See also para, 19 supre,

% Galié 30 Yune 2005 Decision, para. 115; Krsti¢ Decision of 5 Angust 2003, p. 3; Prosecutor v. Radislav Krstié, Case
No. IT-98-33-A, Decision on Application for Subpeenas, 1 July 2003, paras 4-5,

° Tria] Judgencnt, paras 825 and 836. The Appeals Chamber finds that the proffered evidence is irrelevant to the Trial
Chamber’s conclusions at paras 831 and 837 of the Trial Judgement.

97 See The Prosecutor v. Jean-Pau! Akayesu, Case No. ICTR-96-4-A, Judgement, 1 June 2001, paras 286.287.

Case No. ICTR-99-52-A 14 27 November 2006 ¢

_“



————— ]
0412 '068 14:39 FAX 0031705128832 ICTR @015

8925/
30.  Having found that the evidence of Witness ABC1 was available at trial and could have been
discovered at trial through the exercise of duec diligence, the Appeals Chamber must determine

whether the non-admission of the additional evidence would amount to a miscarriage of justice,

31.  The Appellant claims that Witness ABC1’s testimony in the Bagosora et al. case would

have affected the Trial Chamber’s findings as to the credibility of Prosecution Witnesses AHI, EB;

AGX and Omar Serushago,” hence calling into question the findings of fact made by the Trial

Chamber concerning the events in Gisenyi on the basis of the evidence given by those mtnzsses

The Appeals Chamber notes that, in the Bagosora ef al. case, Witness ABC1 expressly afﬁ,np_eé‘
that, on the morning of 7 April 1994, there was no meeting held at Samvura’s place and t.hét-the

Appellant was not present in [that] house.* :

32.  The relevant factual findings of the Trial Chamber in the present case appear to be made on
the basis of evidence provided by Witness Serushago that the Appellant was transporting weaporns
on the moming of 7 April 1994'® corroborated by the evidence of Witness EB that he saw the
Appellant “on the morming of 7 April in a red taxi with a loudspeaker”.'®! The Trial Chamber also
took into account that Witness AHI saw the Appellant early in the moming that day “in military
gear, carrying a gun” and that Witness AGX saw him at around 2:30 p.m. “passing by on the road
in a vehicle with Interahamwe and Impuzamugambi, axmed with different kinds of wcapon.;, and
speaking through a megaphone, calling on the public to flush out the enemy and enemy
accomplices™, ' Finally, the Trial Chamber noted, on the basis of evidence provided by Witness
EB, that “[w]eapons were distributed from a central location, Samvura’s house, where Witness EB
saw the nterakamwe picking them up™.'® On these grounds, the Trial Chamber concluded that

Hassan Npeze ordercd the Jierahamwe in Gisenyi oa the moming of 7 April 1994 to kill Tutsi civilians
and prepare for their burial at the Commune Rouge, Many were killed in the subsequent attacks that
happened immediately thereafter and later on the same day. [...] The attack that resulted in these and
other killings was planned systematically, with weapons distributed in advance, and arrangements
made for the transport and burial of those to be killed."

- .

The Appeals Chamber notes that the Trial Chamber considered that Omar Serushago’s testimony
was not consistently reliable and accepted it “with caution, relying on it only to the extent that it

et o =

- Munnn of 4 July 2006, para. 5, referring to Tuial Judgement, paras 812, 813, 824, 775.
.Bugo.rora et al, caye, T, 13 Tunc 2006, p- 10, 1. 24-32 [closed session - R.EDACTED]
™ Trial Judgement, para. 825.

'°! Ibid., para. §25. |

L3 Id. :

103 I d !

i, para, 836. See also paras 955 and 977A concluding that the Appellant was guilty of genocide, pursuant to
Article 6(1) of the Statute of the Tribunal.

- e
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[was] corroborated™.!” The testimony of Witnesses AHI, AGX and EB was, however, found fo be
credible. %

33.  Witnesses AHI and AGX did not specifically testify to the fact that there had been a meeting
in Samvura’s houge on the morming of 7 April 1994, or that the Appellant attended that meeting or
participated in the distribution of arms that day.""” Therefore, their testimony and/or credibility
would not be affected by the evidence provided by Witness ABC1 in the Bagosora et al: case.!?
However, the Appeals Chamber agrees that the account given by Witness ABC1 can be interpreted
as contradicting the testimony of Witness EB in the present case, in particular, when he stated thaf,
on 7 April 1994, at around 07:00 a.m., he saw the Appellant going towards the house of Barnabe
Samvura.'” The same morning, he also saw other people go into the compound of Samvura’s house
and, thirty minutes later, he heard the Appellant speak through his loudspeaker, telling the
Interahamwe to kill the Tutsi and that some of them should go to the Commune Rouge to dig pits.
According to Witness EB, when coming out of Samvura’s house, the Jnterahamwe carried nail-
studded clubs, rifles and grenades, and the attacks started around 01:00 p.m.'"°

34.  The fact that there had been a meeting held at Samvura’s house on the moming of 7 April
1994 involving the Appellant and distribution of arms is not in itself decisive for the' Trial
Chamber’s conclusion as to the Appellant’s responsibility for killings of the Tutsi cu.uhans m
Gisenyi. In fact, the Trial Chamber concluded that there was no evidence thar the Appellant-was
present during the killings of 7 April 1994'! and that, on that morning, the Appellant ordered the
Interahamwe to kill the Tutsi and to prepare graves in Commune Rouge.'* Consequéntly; the
principal issue is whether, should the Trial Chamber have had the benefit of hearing the testimony
of Witness ABC]1, it would have disbelieved Witness EB with respect to the events that ook place

195 Ibid., para, 824, See also Ngeze Decision on Additional Evidence, paras 26-27.
1% Jbid., paras 775, 813 and 812, respectively.
97 Witmess AHI testified that he saw the Appellant on the moming of 7 April in a military outfit accompanied by his
bodyguards (T. 4 September 2001, p. 51 L 13-17 and p. 69 1. 17-25; T. 10 September 2001, p. 171, 18-20 and p. 52 1.

17-22). Witness AHI referred to d.15u~1buuon of arms by Colonel Anatole Nsenigyumva on 7 April 1994, but.specifiéd
that the Appellant was preseat at a meeting held on 8 April 1994 (T. 4 September 2001, p. 58 1. 7-9 and p. 601. 11-19),
Witness AGX saw the Appellant in the afternoon of 7 April 1994 “passing by on he road in a vehicle abodrd which
were Interahamwe as well as fmpuzamugambi of the CDR” (T. 11 June 2001, p. 3%; T. 13 June 2001, p. 39 ‘I‘ 14 June
2001, pp 40-42). ;
1% The Appeals Chamber notes that Witness ABC1 alsa testified that there was no meeting with Anatole Nscng:L}'mmra
held in Samvura’s house on 7 April 1994 and no distribution of weapons took place there (Bagosora et al. case, T. 13
Tune 2006 (closed session), p. 11 1. 34-35, p. 12 1. 29-31, p. 27 L. 16-18 and 26-31), Witness AHI referred to a.meeting
of MRND and CDR officialg held on 8 Apnl 1994 followed by distribution of weapons (T. 4 September 2001, pp 55-
62) and Witness AGX testified that Colonel Nsengiyumvs spoke in Gisenyi on 7 April 1994 around 10:00 a.m. saying
that the President had been killed by cnemies, adding that there were about two hundred people therc (T, 11 June 2001,
pr 34-39). Consequently, the Appeals Chamber concludes that the threc witnesses were referring to different events and
no flagraut contradiction affecting their credibility could reasonably be drawn from these accounts.
199 T 16 May 2001, pp 2-3.
Y0 id., pp 5-8, 46; T. 17 June 2001, pp 108, 129-134,
'1“ Trml Judgement, para, 825.

274
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on the moming of 7 April 1994, In the presence of contradictory accounts of the two witnesses, the

Trial Chamber would have had to determine which of the accounts was reliable and, in light of
evidence provided by Witness ABC1 in the Bagosora et al. case aud the fact that [REDACTED],
the Appeals Chamber is not satisfied that a reasonable trier of fact would have found this witness
credible to the detriment of the account provided by Witness EB. Moreover, Witness ABC1 in the
Bagosora et al. case only testified to the fact that the Appellant was not at [Samvura’s] house that
morning and that there was no meeting there. The mere fact that [Witness ABC1] did not witness or
hear him ordering the killings does not mean that this could not have occurred.”® The ;a*;ppeafs
Chamber notes to this extent that Witness EB testified that the Appellant ordered the killing thtough
a loudspeaker from his vehicle and not during the meeting at Samvura's house. o Consequently,
and in light of the findings above concerning Witnesses AHI and AGX, the Appeals Chamber is not
satisfied that the exclusion of the proffered additional evidence would amount to a miscarriage of
justice inasmuch as, had it been adduced at trial, it would not have had an impact on the verdict.

C. Motion of 28 Augwst 2006

Submissio the Parties

35. In his Motion of 28 August 2006, the Appellant prays the Appeals Chamber to admit the
Additional Statement of Witness EB purportedly affirming his Recantation Statement of Apnl
2005.'"° The Appellant contends that this evidence is credible and relevant to the rmdenhary
hearing insofar as, if accepted, it “will clear the doubts of the Prosecution regarding the truthfulness
of witness ‘EB’ [sic] first recanted statement”.!'® He notes that this evidence, not available at ‘triall,
could not have been discovered through the exercise of due diligence, and its exclusion would

amount to a miscarriage of justice.'"’

36.  The Prosecution does not object to the Motion of 28 August 2006, acknowledging the
relevance of the Additional Statement in light of the cvidentiary hearing of Witness EB.!'®
Nevertheless, it points out that the “agreement on the admissibility of this statement relates only to
the actual admissibility of the statement, and not to the merits, that is, the reliability or ci"eﬂibili_"cf,?,

'-.

'3 See Jean de Dieu Kamuhanda v. The Prosecuror, Case No, ICTR-99-S4A-A, Tudgement, 19 Septernber 2005, para.
158.

14 At the same time, the Appeals Chamber recalls that the credibility of Witness EB, the only witness to have testified
to the ordering of the killings by the Appellant (the only relevant part of Omar Serushago's testimony that was
considered corroborated by the Trial Chamber, and thus reliable, referred to the fact that the Appellant “was
transporting arms in a red Hilux vehicle on the morning of 7 April 1994 but not the fact that he ordered that attack), is
yet to be re-assesscd on the basis of his testimony at the appeals hearing to the subject of his purported Recantation
Statement,

'S Motion of 28 August 2006, preambulary para. See also para. 6 supra.

Y6 rbid, paras 4, 6.

" [bid, paras 5, 7.

'8 Response 1o the Mation of 28 Augusi 2006, para. 2.
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of the contents of the document.”'’® Furthermore, the Prosecution specifies that the admission of
copies of the envelopes in Which copies of this lefter were received by the Office of the Prosecutor

would be necessary. 2

Disenssion

37.  The Appeals Chamber notes that in the Additional Statement, Witness EB purportedly states
that the reason for this new statement.is that afier having sent his Recantation Statement, he
“learned that officials from the Office of the Prosecutor who had come to see [him] at [his] home
had submitted [his] statement to the [Tribunal]” and that “[t]hese employees of the Tribunal, who
would usually meet [him] at the Ubumwe Hotel threatened [him], asking [him] why [he] hadwffittcn
to the Tribunal to announce [his] recantation™. Since he was “annoyed by their threats, and in order
to get Tid of them, [he] told them the document containing [his] recantation did not come from
[him], even though [he] was indeed tﬁe one who had written it”. According to the Additional
Statement, Witness EB met the “employees of the Tribunal” once more when they came back to
confirm that he was the author of the Recantation Statement but had not heard from them ever
since. Therefore, he decided to write the Additional Statement to confirm that both Recantation
Statements of 5 and 27 April 2005 were written and signed by him. In addition to the information
contained in Witness ER's purported original Recantation Statement, the Additional Statemcnt
specifies that, contrary to his testimony adduced at trial, he never saw the Appellant on 6' 9 Apnl
1994 in Gisenyi [REDACTED]. According to the Additional Statement, 1t was well known to the
inhabitants of Gisenyi that the Appellant was arrested following President Habyarimana’s death and
remained in detention until 9 April 1994; besides, they also knew that the vehicle equipped with
megaphones belonged to Hassan Gitoki from Commune Rouge and not to the Appellant. Finally, in
the Additional Statement, Witness EB refers to the Prosecution Wimess AFX who allegedly also
falsely testified against the Appellant,

38.  The Appeals Chamber considers that there is good cause for the late filing of the Motion of
28 August 2006, since, as explained above, the Appellant only received a copy the Additional
Statement in August 2006.!%' For the reasons explained in the Ngeze Decision on Additional
Evidence, 122 the Appeals Chamber finds that the proffered evidence was unavailable aI tnal and
could not be obtained through the exercise of due diligence. The Appeals Chamber is' equally
satisfied that the tendered Additional Statement is prima facie credible and relevant.'?® Finally; the
Appeals Chamber finds that the Additional Statement could have been a decisive factor in

' Ibid., para. 2.

> 1bid., pata. 3.

2! See para. 6 supra.

" Mgeze Decision on Additional Evidence, pm 23 -
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concluding upon the Appellant’s responsibility for the events that took place in Gisenyi on 7-9

April 1994.'%* The Appeals Chamber emphasizes that the above findings pertain strictly to the
admissibility and not to the merits of the proffered additional evidence.'?*

39.  For the foregoing reascns, the Appeals Chamber finds that the Additional Statement is
admissible as additional evidence on appeal.

D. Motion of 7 September 2006

40. In its Motion of 7 September 2006, the Prosecution seeks admission of the envelopes
containing copies of the Additional Statement as additional evidence on appeal for the purposes of
the evidentiary hearing of Witness EB.!* The Prosecution claims that the information.on the
envelopes is relevant to the issue of determining the authenticity of the Additional Statement,
“which in turn is relevant to the issues [of] the oral hearing, whether EB is recanting his trial
testimony or whether the recantation statement is a product of the Appellant[’s] efforts to interfere
with and suborn the testimony of witnesses™.'?” It contends that “[t]he circumstances swrrounding

the receipt and timing of the letter [...] are suspicious and lead to the inference that someone
associated with the Appellant, or at least someone other than EB, has manufactured the letter”,'?*
The Prosecution, being in the process of obtaining the originals of the envelopes, also seeks

evidentiary hearing or whether they should be filed immediately upon their receipt.'?® “The
Appellant did not respond to the Motion of 7 September 2006. -

41.  The Appeals Chamber recalls that, pursuant to Rule 115 of the Rules, motions for additional
evidence on appeal must be directed towards the contested specific finding of fact made by the Trial
Chamber. The Appeals Chamber recalls that, while the Rule itself does not expressly prohibit a
party from seeking the admission of additional evidence to bolster challenged factual findings, in

12 See ibid., patas 19-22,

Y Trial Tudgement, paras 836-837. See also Ngeze Decision on Additional Rvidence, paras 24-29.

12 See Ngeze Decision on Additional Evidence, para. 28.

126 Motion of 7 September 2006, para. 1.

Y7 fbid,, para. 5.

'8 Thid., para. 6. According to the Prosecution, several copies of the Additional Statement — and not the original — were
sent to the offices of the [CTR in Arusha and Kigali, to two investigators and an interpreter from OTP, in June 2006,
from Tanzania and Rwanda (paras 7-8). According to the Prosecution, “it would ssem highly improbable that the date
of the Appellant’s Motion [of 19 June 2006], seeking admission of an additional statemont received from Witness EB,
is purely cpincidenta] with the mailing of this letter” (paras 9-11, with reference to para. 3 of the Motion of 19 June
2006, in which the Appellant affirms that “the Prosecitor might have collected or received some marerial and/or
statements from witness EB[...]") The Prosecution maintaing that the fact that the Additional Statement was allegedly
written in December 2005 but only posted in June 2006 militates for a conclusion that Witness EB may have written it
under some duress or thar the letters were manufactured by someone else (pare 11). It adds that it “is suspicious that a
letter purporting to come from Witness EB, an mdigent person living in Rwanda, was mailed from Tanzania and
Rwanda”, the only plausible explanation being that someone other than Witness EB posted several copies-to several
persons from several places in order to ensure that the letter was received by the Tribunal (para. 12).
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admifted in support of a factual finding, it is admitted as rebuttal material to thaf addifional evidence

_ admitted in support of a factual error” .*®The Prosecution has not ggp_ad_t];l;_'[nglluigﬂem_m

42. The Appeals Chamber finds that it is in the interests of justice {0 examine propric moiu

whctheLthg_mat;nﬂ_tgndgm_hy_thg_hgsecunon in its Motion of 7 September 2006 can be

a, 2.

** Frosecutor v, Jovica bfﬂﬂﬂia and Franko Simeiovié, Case No, [T-03-09-AR&G5.1, Decision on Stanific’s Ap‘phﬁahon

under Rule 115 to Present Additional Evidence in his Respouse to the Pmsecutlon s Appeal, 3 December 2004, para.

er al., Case No. IT-98-30/1-A, Decision oo F

(“Kvodka Decision™), p. 3; The Proseculor v. Tihomir Bfaskw, Case No. IT-95-1 4—A Dcmsmn on Ev:ldem, 31 October

2003, p. 5

Lo ”ﬂ*eémgﬁcciaien,—p&;%&éka@ecﬁ‘m 3
ionp3
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September 2006. The Appeals Chamber proprio motu ADMITS as rebuttal evidence on appeal the

copies of envelopes annexed to the Motion of 7 September 2006.

45.  The Appeals Chamber INSTRUCTS the Registrar to provide the following material so far

admitted into evidence on appeal with corresponding exhibit numbers:

- copy of the typed statement purportedly signed by Witness EB, index numbers 2223A-
2220-A;

- Forensic Report, including the copy of the purported handwritten Recantation Statement,
index numbers 3442/A-3413/A;

- copy of the Additional Statement in Kinyarwanda, as well as its translations into Enghsh

and French, index numbers 8121 A-8112/A
- copies of envelopes, index numbers 8183/A-8175/A.

Done in English and French, the English text being authoritative.

Dated this 27" day of November 2006,
At The Hague, The Netherlands.

Fausto Pocar
Presiding Judge
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